ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVM TTEE
March 10, 2015
8:03 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Representative David Tal erico
Representative Liz Vazquez
Representative Loui se Stutes
Representati ve Max G uenberg
Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N&( S) :

Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans' Affairs

Lauri e Humrel - Anchorage, Al aska
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

Al aska State Conm ssion For Human Rights

Lester Lunceford - Anchorage, Al aska
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

HOUSE BI LL NO. 106

"An Act relating to the Uniform Interstate Famly Support Act,
including jurisdiction by tribunals of the state, registration
and proceedings related to support orders from other state
tribunals, foreign support orders, foreign tribunals, and
certain persons residing in foreign countries; relating to
determ nation of parentage of a child; and providing for an
effective date."

- HEARD & HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 10, 2015



BILL: HB 106
SHORT TI TLE: UNI FORM | NTER CHI LD SUPPCRT; PARENTAGE
SPONSCR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

02/ 11/ 15 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 11/ 15 (H) STA, JUD

02/ 19/ 15 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
02/ 19/ 15 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 19/ 15 (H) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 03/ 15 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
03/ 03/ 15 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 03/ 15 (H) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 05/ 15 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
03/ 05/ 15 (H) -~ MEETI NG CANCELED - -

03/ 10/ 15 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

LAURI E HUMMEL, Adjutant Gener al

Comm ssi oner Desi ghee

Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans' Affairs (DWA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as comm ssioner designee of the
Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans' Affairs (DWA).

ROBERT DCEHL, Deputy Conmm ssi oner

Department of Mlitary & Veterans' Affairs (DWA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the confirmation hearing
for Adjutant Ceneral Laurie Humrel as conm ssioner designee of
the Departnent of Mlitary & Veterans' Affairs (DWA).

LESTER LUNCEFORD, Appoi nt ee

Al aska State Conm ssion for Human Ri ghts (ASCHR)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee for the Al aska State
Comm ssion for Human Ri ghts (ASCHR).

CAROL BEECHER, Director

Anchorage Central Ofice

Chil d Support Services Division (CSSD)

Depart nent of Revenue (DOR)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
106.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 10, 2015



YVETTE RIDDI CK, Director

Di vision of Policy and Training

Ofice of Child Support Enforcenent

Administration for Children and Fam |l ies

U S. Departnment of Health and Human Services

Cty and State

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
hearing on HB 106.

LI NDSAY BEAVER, Legi sl ative Counci l

Uni f orm Law Conmi ssi on

No address provided

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 106 and answered
gquesti ons.

BATTLE ROBI NSON

Uni f orm Law Conmi ssi on

Dover, Del aware

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 106.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:03:43 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee
neeting to order at 8:03 a.m Representatives Keller, Stutes,
Tal eri co, Vazquez, and Lynn were present at the call to order.
Representatives Guenberg and Kreiss-Tonkins arrived as the
nmeeting was in progress.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N S) : DEPARTMENT OF M LI TARY & VETERANS
AFFAI RS

8:04: 04 AM

CHAIR LYNN announced the first order of business was the
confirmation hearing for Adjutant GCeneral Lauren J. Hummel,
Comm ssi oner Appointee, Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans

Affairs.

CHAIR LYNN related his support for the mlitary and listed the
menbers of his famly, including hinmself, who had served.

8:06: 11 AM

LAURI E HUMVEL, Adj ut ant CGener al / Comm ssi oner Appoi nt ee,
Department of Mlitary & Veterans' Affairs (DWA), talked about

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 10, 2015



her desire to join the nmlitary at the age of seven and her
mlitary father's guidance in that regard. She said her father
was a nodel of selfless service, who served as a helicopter
nmechanic from 1948 to 1972, with four conbat tours. She cited
chal l enging work and good | eadership as her reasons for serving
for 30 years, and she said she retired in June 2012.

8:09: 26 AM

ADJUTANT GENERAL HUMMEL said in 1998, she was given the
opportunity to command a battalion wthin the field of
intelligence or to be a tenured professor at The Mlitary
Acadeny, and she chose the latter. She studied at the
University of Colorado for her doctorate, and wote her thesis
on the inpact of mlitary investnment in Alaska during the Cold
War. She said she served the latter part of her termin active
duty at West Point, and she deployed a nunber of tines. I n
2012, she retired. A couple years later, the governor of Al aska
asked her to serve as the conm ssioner of the DWA and adjutant
general [of the Alaska National Guard], which necessitated her
husband leaving the ranks of the Alaska Arny Guard to serve
el sewhere.

ADJUTANT CGENERAL HUMMEL named people who inspired and influenced
her as | eaders: Chancellor Tom Case, in Alaska; Phil Qats,
former adjutant general in Al aska; and Debbie Beckworth (ph),
who taught her about talent nanagenent. She said she hopes to
create an organizational culture of noral, legal, and ethical
correctness, deliberate and predictable decisions, nmut ual
respect, and fun. She stated that she never expected to be in
this position and found herself both excited and hunbl ed.

8:15: 46 AM

ADJUTANT GENERAL HUMMEL, in response to a question from Chair
Lynn, said her last job in the US Arny was as senior advisor
for the National MIlitary Acadeny of Afghanistan. She perfornmed
her last admnistrative duties at Wst Point, New York, where
she was released from active duty service. She tal ked about
being a sergeant's daughter. In response to a question, she
said she was not the first adjutant general to conme out of
active duty retirenent. She tal ked about being a brigadier
general in the Alaska National CGuard and waiting for federal
recognition. She explained that the governor has the authority
to appoint her to a rank that is one rank higher than her
federal recognition.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 10, 2015



8:18: 57 AM

ADJUTANT GENERAL HUMMEL, in response to a question from Chair
Lynn, clarified that her husband was not retired from the
mlitary but was a colonel in the Alaska Arny National Guard

She offered further details regarding his nove from Al aska to
work in National Guard Bureau headquarters in Wshington, D.C.,
and explained that in order to conmply with Alaska s nepotism
statutes, his position was outside the chain of comand of the
Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans' Affairs (DWA).

8:21:39 AM

ADJUTANT GENERAL HUMMEL, in response to Chair Lynn, defined
"“conmand presence" as a personal asset where people believe in
your abilities, they believe in your principles, and they want
to follow you. She said it was a conbination of tangible and
intangi ble qualities, including intelligence that is "nore than
book smarts,” enotional intelligence, and selflessness. She
said she believed CGovernor Bill Wlker had command presence.
She said part of comand presence was |earned, but sonme was
i nnat e. She naned Brigadier General Jack Gubs as a good
exanpl e of soneone with command presence. In response to Chair
Lynn, she said she hoped she had comand presence. She tal ked
about the nunber of selfless people in DWA who had the
organi zation's best interest at heart.

8:24: 39 AM

ADJUTANT GENERAL HUMVEL, in response to Chair Lynn, defined
"esprit de corps" as the notivation that cones from realizing
that the sum total of the body is nore than just the additive
sum of the individuals in it. She related an anecdote. She
answered further questions from Chair Lynn, and relayed nore of
her background experiences.

8:29:11 AM

ADJUTANT GENERAL HUMMVEL, in response to Chair Lynn, said working
with people in the Alaska National Guard was different because
somre were weekend soldiers, sone were federal general service
enpl oyees during the week and "M day" soldiers on the weekends,
and sone were in the active guard reserves. Each had different
rights and responsibilities. She explained the difference
between mlitary command and mlitary staff.

8:32: 24 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 10, 2015



ADJUTANT GENERAL HUMMEL, in response to Chair Lynn, relayed that
the | argest group she had commanded was a conpany conprising 190
per sonnel . She described how she had declined an offer to
command a squadron because she determined it would have
benefitted her, but would not have been the best choice to nake
for the good of the U S. Arny. She said the population of the
Al aska Air National Guard was roughly 2,100, and the Al aska Arny
National CGuard was between 1,950 and 2,000 - about 4,000 all-
t oget her.

CHAI R LYNN asked how many alleged victinms and perpetrators there
were in the Alaska National Guard scandal, and what percentage
that was of the total

ADJUTANT GENERAL HUMVEL estimated that over the last 6 years
there had been approximately 16 cases of sexual assault, in
which the perpetrators were a guardsnmen, and about 35-40 cases
of sexual assault, in which the perpetrators were outside the
forces.

CHAIR LYNN indicated that that was a small percentage of the
total nunber of people in that branch of the service.

8:35: 35 AM

ADJUTANT GENERAL HUMVEL, in response to a question, said she
first heard about the assaults through the Al aska D spatch News.
She said her husband served as one of the investigative officers
whi ch was the reason the issue was not discussed at hone. She
said she followed the reports, including the summary of a report
by the Ofice of Conplex Investigations (OCl) when it was nade
avail abl e on line.

CHAIR LYNN noted that Adjutant General Hummel was a nenber of
the National Coalition for Honel ess Veterans, and asked her how
active she was in the coalition

ADJUTANT GENERAL HUMVEL said she was not very active. She said
she was cognizant of the need to be careful in her choice of
organi zations in which to be invol ved.

ADJUTANT GENERAL HUMMEL, in response to another question, said
she qualified for Di sabled Anerican Veterans (DAV) because of a
service-related disability.

8:38:21 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 10, 2015



CHAIR LYNN said everyone in the mlitary was subject to the
Uni form Code of MIlitary Justice (UCM]). He asked what sone of
the differences were between the prohibitions on personal
conduct for active duty personnel and "the rest of us in this
room*"

ADJUTANT GENERAL HUMVEL explained that she could not answer
because she was not an attorney at |law, but deferred to Robert
Doehl .

8:39:35 AM

ADJUTANT GENERAL HUMMEL, in response to Chair Lynn, reiterated
that she found out through public neans about the indiscretions
that occurred in the Al aska National Guard; she did not hear
about it from her husband.

CHAIR LYNN asked Adjutant General Humel iif she had ever
vi ol ated any of the UCM.

ADJUTANT CGENERAL HUMVEL answer ed no.
8:40: 13 AM

[Due to technical difficulties, brief portions of the remaining
confirmation hearing for Adjutant General Humrel were not
recorded, but were reconstructed from the conmttee secretary's
| og notes.]

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked for information about Adjutant
General Hummel 's husband.

ADJUTANT GENERAL HUMMEL responded that her husband had | oined
the [Alaska] National Guard in late 2001; he had left active
duty service in Septenber 2001. He relinquished his brigade
command on February 5, after serving in that position for two
years. In response to Representative Vazquez, she said she was
certain her husband had know edge of the issues going on within
the Al aska National Guard, but said he did not discuss those
issues wth her. She said there were still pendi ng
i nvestigations within the guard: a couple 15-6 investigations
and the conpletion of an investigation by Judge Collins. She
indicated that the federal investigations of personnel were
conplete, thus the only investigations still ongoing were
internal, with the possible exception of sonme financial audits.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 10, 2015



8:43:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated his understanding that severa
| egislators, including hinmself, wanted to bring state statutes
up to date, and the adm nistration was working on that as well.
He asked for information regarding that effort.

ADJUTANT CGENERAL HUMMEL said she had appointed a full-tinme judge
advocate general officer to serve as a legislative liaison to
assist in the efforts begun to revise state statutes for the
pur pose of creating a workable state [code of mlitary justice],
as well as a workable regulation or statute that would enable
non-j udi ci al punishment. She said the judge advocate woul d work
with the legislature to create a statute that the National CGuard
needed in order to create the disciplinary codes necessary "to
keep our culture where it needs to be and to deliver
di sciplinary action where needed."” She said the effort was in
its early stages. She said she was due to receive an update
later in the week to determ ne how nmuch nore work needed to be
done. She said the issue was conplex, and she enphasized the
need for a "water-tight statute" that would "stand the tests
that will conme.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if Adjutant General Hummel was
looking to the legislature to draft legislation rather than
coming to the legislature with a proposal

ADJUTANT GENERAL HUMMVEL stated her hope was for the Al aska
National Guard and the Alaska State Legislature to work
t oget her. She acknow edged that the |egislature had begun work
on the issue. She opined that the departnment should have becone

i nvol ved sooner, but said it was currently working in
partnership with the legislature. She enphasized her desire for
constant communication. In response to a question, she said she

did not think |egislation would be conpleted during the current
| egi sl ati ve session.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked what effort Adjutant GCeneral
Hummel was making to coordinate with other states on the issue.

ADJUTANT CGENERAL HUMMEL answered that she had copies of other
states' codes and would use them where applicable; however, she
said Alaska was different in a nunber of ways. For exanple, she
said the nodel code in Pennsylvania, which had 14,000 nenbers in
the National Guard and the capacity to set up a court wth
judges and jury, would not work in Al aska, because Al aska was
too small. She said she had access to the chief council of the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 10, 2015



Nati onal Guard Bureau and was in close consultation with other
states, as well.

8:48: 50 AM

CHAIR LYNN noted that he, Representative G uenberg, and
Representative Keller also served on the House Judiciary
Standi ng Conmttee (HIUD).

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that sonme HSTA Committee nenbers
also served on the House Special Committee on Mlitary and
Vet erans' Affairs.

8:49: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES asked when Adjutant General Hummel began
wor ki ng at Joint Base El nendorf Ri chardson (JBER).

ADJUTANT GENERAL HUMMEL said she started working at JBER on
February 5, 2015. In response to a followup question, she said
prior to that she was retired.

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES thanked Adjutant General Hummel for her
servi ce.

8:49: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said it sounded |ike some of the
i nvestigations were conpleted, while others were not. He asked
Adj ut ant General Hummel to el aborate.

ADJUTANT GENERAL HUMVEL said the issues uncovered by the OCl had
been adjudicated, and she recollected that she signed the |ast
of the cases a week ago. She indicated that those adjudications
had resulted in various puni shnments and administrative
di schar ges. She said there were a couple cases ongoing, which
may or my not have been open during the tine the OC was
i nvol ved and may not have been within the scope of the OCl. She
offered her understanding that "these cases do not have
m screants who were guard nenbers.” She explained, "In other
words, there were sone cases, perhaps, of sexual assault that
were included in the purview of the OCl that were perpetrated by
nmenbers outside the Guard, and so are outside the purview of the
Guard, as far as the perpetrator; but the care of the victimis
still inside of our organization."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- March 10, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG offered his wunderstanding that there
may have been sone other types of potential violations that the
National Guard's investigations had uncovered. He asked what
t hey may have been and what the status of them was.

ADJUTANT GENERAL HUMMEL said other infractions, such as fraud
and enbezzl enment, were discovered and published by the OC, and
she offered her understanding that the folks who conmtted those
violations were not in the Al aska National Guard. She said
there were a couple personnel actions still pending, which she
coul d not discuss.

8:53: 59 AM

ROBERT DOEHL, Deputy Conmm ssioner, Departnent of Mlitary &
Veterans’ Affairs, stated that a key difference between active
mlitary personnel and non-mlitary personnel was that the
former was expected to "step in harmis way" when necessary,
while the latter was not. He said, "You need to have a
disciplinary system that you can order them to do that."
Further, he stated that other than in |law enforcenent, there was
no ot her occupation outside of the mlitary where a person could
be ordered to take another person's life. He enphasi zed the
i mportance of maintaining "good order and discipline” to do
t hat . He said a person could quit his/her civilian job, but a
person could not desert from the mlitary. He tal ked about
upholding the core values of the United States when wearing a
mlitary uniform He said, "I ~could not nake disparaging
comment s about anyone based on their ethnicity or otherw se, and
that, again, is an exanple of where we need a Code of Mlitary
Justice to address those matters."

CHAI R LYNN commented on the conplicated nature of the rules that
may apply to sonmeone who was a civilian in the National CGuard.

DEPUTY COW SSI ONER DOEHL offered an exanple, and indicated that
in the Alaska National Guard, the core values of the mlitary
had to be maintained in a civilian setting. He opined that that
was far nore difficult, which was why it was inportant not to
rush toward a mlitary code, but to "get it right the first
time."

ADJUTANT GENERAL HUMMEL commented on the good | eadership under
her command, and she expressed enthusiasm for the work that was
bei ng done.

8:57:27 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- March 10, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked Deputy Commissioner Doehl to
confirm whether all the investigations by the OC had been
conpl et ed.

DEPUTY COW SSI ONER DOEHL answered that the OCl's action in
Al aska were conpleted. The OClI had found there was no basis for
crimnal sanctions, but identified the need for ongoing audits
to address fiscal issues and ensure proper accountability for

"state [and] federal funds." In response to a followup
question, he confirnmed that the OCl was a federal entity, and
its i nvestigations wer e separate from those of t he

af orenenti oned Judge Collins. The OCI was created by policy as
part of the National Guard Bureau, which operated under Title 10
of the United States Code, using federal funds, and providing a
tool for the governor of Alaska to use to call for an
investigation if there was an issue over whether or not the
Al aska National Guard was maintaining discipline and order.
Judge Collins' investigation, he said, was being done under a
state statute authorizing the appointnent of a special
investigator by the Ofice of the Attorney General, using state
resources "to evaluate solely based upon state statutes for
conpliance thereof in state regulations.” In response to a
followup question, he offered his wunderstanding that Judge
Collins' report would be ready in April of 2015, and 30 days
|ater a report would be nade available to the public.

8:59:41 AM

ADJUTANT GENERAL HUMMEL, in response to Representative Vazquez

explained that sone people do not conme forward for fear of
retaliation or recrimnation. She discussed creating an
environment of nmutual respect in order to encourage people to
conme forward. She said there were many ways that people could
report activity that did not |ook right. She enphasi zed the
need to ensure a consistent, witten process for such things as
recruiting and retention.

9:01: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG indicated that nore so than at the
federal level, the relationship between civilian and mlitary
enpl oyees made the comissioner's job conplex in terms of
accountability. He said he thought part of the problem enmanated
from "the lack of real civilian oversight and know edge about
what was going on before.” He asked Adjutant GCeneral Humel
what steps she had taken to ensure "real"” civilian control.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 10, 2015



ADJUTANT GENERAL HUMMEL replied that nost inportant was that the
governor, as commander in chief, received the reports hel/she
want ed. Further, she reiterated the inportance of emanating
openness and trust across the command. She stated her belief
that any Al askan who had questions of the command should be able
to ask those questions and have them answered. She expressed
wi |l lingness to continue the conversation on the topic.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG st ated that he needed nobre answers.

CHAI R LYNN t hanked Adjutant General Hummel for her presentation.

9: 05: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to advance the confirmation of
Adj ut ant CGener al Laurie Huntrel , Comm ssi oner Desi gnee,
Department of Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs, to the joint
session for consideration. There being no objection, the

confirmati on was advanced.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N S) :  ALASKA STATE COW SSI ON FOR HUNVAN
Rl GHTS

9: 05: 36 AM

CHAIR LYNN announced the next order of business was the
confirmation hearing for Lester Lunceford as appointee for the
Al aska State Conm ssion for Human Ri ghts.

9:06: 01 AM

LESTER LUNCEFORD, Appointee, Al aska State Conm ssion for Human
Ri ghts (ASCHR), relayed that he had served on the comm ssion for
the last 12 years; he was first appointed by Governor Frank
Mur kowsKki . He said he was a retired police officer, and he
stated that the appointnent to the comm ssion was the right fit
in order to continue serving the public.

9:07: 05 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expressed concern about backlog on the
conmi ssi on. He remarked that M. Lunceford had served on the

commssion for a long tine, thus, he asked how the backlog
conpared currently and fornerly.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 10, 2015



MR. LUNCEFORD replied that the backlog seened to be consistent
over the years. He said there was a limted staff that
addressed tens of thousands of conplaints a vyear; those
conplaints were screened; a percentage of them turned out to be
based on legitimate discrimnation; and only half a dozen
investigators dealt with hundreds of conplaints. Further, he
said the legislative process stretched out the time it took. He
said the Ofice of Admnistrative Hearings had input on sone of
t he cases. He said sonme hearings take nonths. M. Lunceford
said that while the conm ssion was concerned about the tine,
under its current process there was not nuch it could do about
it. He said sonetinmes a conplainant or a violator would ask for
additional tinme to look into other aspects of a case.

9:10:41 AM

CHAIR LYNN asked how many conmm ssioners served on the Al aska
State Commi ssi oner on Human Ri ghts.

MR. LUNCEFORD answered seven. He added that there were always
three assigned to each case. He said sonetinmes the conm ssion
woul d receive boxes of information on a case, often including
audio tapes and other |egal docunments, which it had to sort
through in order to prepare for the case. He said there was a
nmedi ati on process. He shared his own experiences when he began
serving on the conmm ssion. He observed that the conmm ssion
seened to be nore efficient in settling cases before having to
go to hearing.

9:13: 04 AM

MR.  LUNCEFORD, in response to a question from Chair Lynn,
described the typical process. First, the case was presented to
t he commi ssi on, and t he comm ssi oners coul d have a
representative from the Ofice of the Attorney General present
to ensure the conm ssioners spoke on behalf of the state and in
a manner that was right for the case. He said cases were
presented to the commssion fully investigated, wth the
investigator's findings on the case, and it was up to the three
commi ssioners assigned to the case to either agree with those
findings or ask the investigator to interview another person or
continue the investigation in sonme nanner. However, if the
three nmenbers of the conm ssion agreed with the investigator's
findings, then they ruled as a body, and the case was "pretty

much final at that tinme." The plaintiff or violator would then
have the option of appealing the case to a court. He said on
several occasions that had happened. If the court ruled in

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- March 10, 2015



favor of the findings of the conm ssion, then that ruling was

final. However, the court could require the conmmssion to
further investigate or hold additional interviews. He stated
nore often than not, in cases appealed to court level, the

court's decision was that that commssion "acted in good faith
and ... found justly."

9:15: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to advance the confirmation of
Lester Lunceford, Appointee, Al aska State Conm ssion For Human
Rights, to the joint session for consideration.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG objected to ask questions. He
explained he wanted to know nore about the issue of backlog
related to M. Lunceford's tine with the comm ssion.

MR. LUNCEFORD responded that he did not have that information

which was wusually conpiled by the executive director of the
comm ssi on. He said over the years, that nunber fluctuated
between 6 and 12 percent.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he woul d have to pursue the answer
el sewher e. He remarked on the length of time it had taken the
commi ssion to address conplaints in the past, and he questioned
whet her that was still the case and what was being done about
it.

9:18: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER expressed appreciation for M. Lunceford's
servi ce. He expressed a desire to have M. Lunceford return
before the commttee sonme tine to answer questions about the

function and status of the commssion, and he asked if M.
Lunceford would be willing to do that.

MR. LUNCEFORD responded yes.
9:19: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG renoved his objection to the notion to
advance the confirmation of Lester Lunceford, Appointee, Al aska
State Conmission For Human Rights, to the joint session for
consi der ati on. There being no further obj ecti on, t he
confirmation was advanced.

9:19:55 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 10, 2015



The conmmittee took an at-ease from9:20 a.m to 9:23 a.m

"#hb106
HB 106- UNI FORM | NTER. CHI LD SUPPORT; PARENTAGE

9:22:46 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the final order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO. 106, "An Act relating to the Uniform Interstate Famly

Support Act, including jurisdiction by tribunals of the state,
registration and proceedings related to support orders from
ot her state tribunals, foreign support orders, foreign

tribunals, and certain persons residing in foreign countries;
relating to determ nation of parentage of a child; and providing
for an effective date."

9:23:21 AM

CAROL BEECHER, Director, Anchorage Central Ofice, Child Support
Services Division (CSSD), Departnent of Revenue (DOR), noted
that, in response to a request made by the conmttee on 3/3/15,
three individuals were available to testify: Yvette Riddick
fromthe Ofice of Child Support Enforcenent; Battle Robinson, a
commi ssioner on the Uniform Law Comm ssion; and Linsey Beaver,
the |l egislative council for the Uniform Law Comr ssi on.

9:24: 36 AM

YVETTE RIDDICK, Director, Division of Policy and Training,
Ofice of Child Support Enforcenent, Adm nistration for Children
and Families, US. Departnent of Health and Hunan Servi ces,
stated that the 2008 anendments to the Uniform Interstate Famly
Support Act (U FSA) represented a collaborative effort anong the
Uniform Law Conmm ssion, federal and state child support
of ficials, and representatives of national child support
organi zations that standardized the rules for enforcenment and

nodi fications of famly support orders - both donmestic and
i nternational. She said U FSA 2008 built wupon inportant 2001
anmendnents. She enphasi zed that [U FSA 2008] woul d be wonder f ul
for all citizens of the U S., including Al askans.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER told Ms. Riddick there had been questions
raised at the prior hearing as to whether the |Iaw would have to
be adopted verbatim He offered his understanding that the
opi nion of Al aska's Departnment of Law was that verbati m adoption
was not a requirenent under federal |aw

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- March 10, 2015



M5. RIDDICK relayed [her office] worked closely with the Uniform
Law Conmm ssion, and since its initial adoption in 1992, U FSA
had provided Universal and Uniform Rules for famly support
orders in the states. She explained it was that uniformty that
had hel ped nake interstate case processing so nuch better than
it used to be prior to U FSA 1996 and the 2001 and 2008 versions
that foll owed. Wthout wuniformty - "non-verbatinm - the
process was dragged down. She cited Section 466(f) of the
Social Security Act, which read as follows [original punctuation
provi ded] :

(f) In order to satisfy section 454(20)(A), on and
after January 1, 1998, each State nust have in effect
the UniformInterstate Fanmi |y Support Act, as approved
by the American Bar Association on February 9, 1993
and as in effect on August 22, 1996, including any
anmendnents officially adopted as of such date by the
Nat i onal Conference of Conm ssioners on Uniform State
Laws.

M5. RIDDICK said when referencing Public Law 113-183, her office
interpreted official adoption of U FSA 2008 as verbatim She
said the office |ooked at previous congressional reports and
reported to conmittees at the federal governnent |evel. For
exanple, she stated that the National Child Support Enforcenent
Association provided testinony to the House Ways and Means
Committee on WMarch 20, 2012, and on page 7 of the report
regardi ng how The Convention would be inplenented, the opening
paragraph read that the intent for Congress was to require
states to adopt the 2008 U FSA anendnents verbatim or |ose
federal funding for the state federal child support enforcenent
progr amns. More recently, Congressional Research Services
referred to Public Law 113-183, which included provisions to
i npl enent The Convention and other U FSA treaty obligations, and
which required states to adopt U FSA 2008 anmendnents verbatimto
ensure uniformty of procedures, requirenents, and reporting

forms. She stated, "If it was not verbatim it would not serve
the purpose that we would like for it to serve, which is to
provide a ... streamline process for both donestic and

i nternational case processing."”
9: 30: 58 AM
M5. RIDDICK said her office issued guidance to the states on a

regul ar basis. She relayed that on February 17, 2015, the
office issued Action Transmttal 1501 to all State of Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 16- March 10, 2015



child support prograns. She said the office wanted to show
sensitivity to state codes and things that mght be a little
different in state laws; therefore, in the action transmttal
the office indicated that states nust enact U FSA 2008 verbati m
by the effective date noted in Public Law 113-183, but - as wth
UFSA 1996 - states my replace bracketed [|anguage wth
term nol ogy that was appropriate under state |aw For exanpl e,
she said the word "tribunal" could be replaced by the word
"court." She said states were not required to adopt the sane
nunbering of the Uniform statute, because the nunbering system
under state code was sonetinmes different. Also, where a statute
referred to other laws or statutes, even if the article or
section nunber was not included in brackets, the state nmay
replace the references with the appropriate article or section
nunber of that state's statute. She said the federal Ofice of
Child Support Enforcement (OCSE) would review "minor, non-
substantive, and trivial" deviations between U FSA 2008 and
state law, on a case-by-case basis. She said all states were
involved with passage of U FSA 2008, and her staff was in the
process of doing reviews and providing technical assistance.
She said the OCSE had been able to "weigh local format to rea
changes"; however, she said significant changes to the core
words of Ul FSA 2008 | egislation would have a negative inpact on
interstate case processing.

9: 33: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER offered his understanding that the word
verbatim had caused problens for the commttee. He nmentioned
proposed anendments that would not change the neaning or focus
of the bill.

9:34: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked for witten testinony from M.
Ri ddi ck, if avail abl e.

M5. RIDDICK said she was not reading froma witten statenent,
but coul d send some docunents.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG enphasized the inportance of M.
Riddick as a witness fromthe federal government. He brought up
federal overreach. He tal ked about the conm ssioner's decisions
regarding uniformty of law, and said it was unusual to have a
Uniform Act interpreted by another body - the federal
gover nment . He asked who, in this case, would be deciding
uniformty.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 10, 2015



M5. RIDDI CK responded that the OCSE, as the administer of child
support at the federal level, was in partnership with |[ocal
state child support entities and prograns and provided 66
percent federal funding for states to use in running their child
support prograns. She said each state was required to have a
state plan, a contract between that state and the OCSE that the
state would manage its prograns in conpliance with federal |aw
and adopt procedures required by the federal governnent. Once a
state was in conpliance, which Al aska was, the OCSE would
continue the 66 percent funding, and there was an audit process
in place. Wen legislation was passed, it would becone a state
plan requirement if it was mandatory or "if it's actually put
in" She said the aforenentioned Action Transmttal 1501
contained a requirenent of an anmended state plan page, which
i ndi cated adoption of U FSA [2008]. The page would be sent to
the OCSE, and if it was approved, then there would be no risk of
| oss of federal funding. She indicated that in FY 12, the
federal government partially funded the child support program
and rei nbursed the Tenporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF)

program the amount of approximately $60 nillion. She said,
"Wth U FSA 2008, we'll be nonitoring that under the unbrella of
the state plan, and ... the staff here, along wth our
attorneys, right now, | think, are review ng proposals fromthe
states to ensure that they're verbatim or, if they are not

verbatim that they are within the paranmeters of the description
that | just provided a few m nutes ago."

9:42:22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the commttee was focusing on the
federal aspect in an effort to determne its limtations of
power, and he requested that Ms. Riddick could remain avail able
on |ine.

9:43: 18 AM

LI NDSAY BEAVER, Legislative Council, Uniform Law Conmm ssion,
said she was in support of HB 106.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG renmarked that wusually there was sone
latitude to allow variations between states. He asked Ms.
Beaver if U FSA 2008 gave less than nornmal latitude to allow
vari ati ons between the states.

9:44: 08 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 10, 2015



M5. BEAVER responded that from "a Uniform perspective," the
commi ssioners were focused on uniformty and conforming to the
true intent behind the law. A second factor was whether or not
the legislation introduced by states was sufficiently close to
verbatim so as to satisfy the federal |egislation and the OCSE.
She said the verbatim analysis was stringent and was also tied
to federal funds; therefore, the focus of the |aw had been on
whet her or not the | aw was verbatim

9:45: 08 AM

BATTLE ROBINSON, Uniform Law Conm ssion, stated that "this
| egi sl ation” would inplenent a federal treaty. She said when a
federal governnent entered into an international treaty, it
drafted, proposed, and adopted the inplenmenting |egislation.
She said however the treaty was inplenmented, if it was done by
federal law, it would be binding on all the states. She offered
her understanding that this was the first tine that the effort
was being nmade to inplenent the treaty through uniform state
| egi sl ation. The reason it was being done this way was that
UFSA was the very famliar child support statute, which all
agencies, attorneys, and litigants used. She said the states
were really being asked to inplement the international treaty
that the federal governnent had entered into. She said it was
inportant to consider the alternative: wi t hout Ul FSA [2008],
states would probably have a federal Act that would bind the
state to all its terns.

CHAI R LYNN remarked, "It sounds |ike blackmil."
9:47: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said this was the first time he had
seen the comm ssioners having to bow to a nore stringent

interpretation of uniformty from the federal governnment. He
said it sounded as if M. Robinson was saying the conm ssioners
were confortable doing so. He indicated that the |anguage of
Section 466(f), WUFSA wuld use "the nornmal standard of
uniformty and not to require a standard of verbatim" He
guesti oned whether this was done properly through the adoption
of f eder al regul ati on or t hr ough an adm ni strative

interpretation.

M5. ROBINSON responded that she thought the requirenent was one
of the OCSE, which had supervisory functions, as well as joint
functions to run the country's child support prograns. She
concurred with Ms. Beaver that whether or not the Uniform Law

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 10, 2015



Comm ssion believes a particular act was uniform was a separate
i ssue. She stated that when this |law was developed, it was
drafted from many interested people from many states, including
j udges, |awers, representatives of child support agencies, and
t he federal government.

9:50: 23 AM

CHAIR LYNN, in response to Representative Keller, said there
would not be tine during the present neeting for a sectional
anal ysis, and the bill would be held over.

REPRESENTATI VE = KELLER  comment ed t hat previ ous t esti nmony
indicated this is unique in that the legislature is being asked
to inplement a treaty setting a precedence, which causes him
pause. He noted that he needs tinme to consider the issue as
this is sonething to be analyzed in light of the legislature's
normal treaty inplenentation process, and the potentials of
where this may go if the commttee does sonething "novel."

CHAI R LYNN sai d he shared sonme of that concern
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expressed thanks to all the testifiers.

CHAIR LYNN reiterated that the commttee was not yet finished
with its discussion on HB 106.

9:53: 15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ enphasized her desire to hear from
sonmeone within Senator Lisa Mirkowski's office because she would
not be confortable passing out HB 106, w thout having input from
sonmeone in our federal del egation.

CHAI R LYNN sai d he thought that was a good i dea.

9:54: 28 AM

M5. STEINBERG said "a congressional delegation in Senator
Mur kowski 's of fice" had been contacted for input, and no one was
available to testify; however, the office would be sending
witten testinony.

CHAIR LYNN said he would like sonmeone on line to speak to the

commttee, at the invitation of both the adm nistration and the
House State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 10, 2015



MS. STEI NBERG said, "W could continue to try."

CHAI R LYNN announced that HB 106 was hel d over.

9:57: 38 AM

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at 9:58
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 10, 2015



